




Minutes of the Dare County Planning Board 

April 4, 2023 meeting 

Page 2 of 16 

• Discussed Safe Harbor and how they have already sent letters to owners of the

fish houses and how they are known to ruin fishing communities.

• Stated that Dare County is founded on commercial fishing, and how much money

comes into the county because of it.

• Discussed the Board of Commissioners and the dredge, Miss Katie.

• Stated that there needs to be standards on cluster home projects to make it

appealing to families and younger individuals.

Mitchell Bateman 

• Stated that he had sent emails to the Commissioners, Planning Board and

Planning Staff seeking information.

• Asked if the Community of Wanchese has the same authority to remove the

Cluster Home Ordinance that the Commissioners had in 2018 and 2019 to put

the Cluster Home Ordinance in place.

• Explained that there is a process to be used, and there needs to be a

recommendation from the Planning Board to begin the process.

• Stated that Wanchese was encouraged to write its own zoning and asked the

Planning Board to consider putting the Wanchese Zoning back to the way it was.

• Asked the Planning Board to ride through Wanchese during daylight to see all of

the signs.

Allison Beacham 

• Feels that an ordinance got put into place and that many people were not made

aware of.

• Expressed that it is not one person's fault, and that it is everyone's fault

• Asked the Planning Board to revise the Ordinance of Wanchese, and see what

can be done to improve Wanchese.

• Feels that there are a few things that have to be done before an influx of people

move to Wanchese. Which include the following: street lights, lower speed limits,

sidewalks, removal of vegetation that creates blind spots in the roadways.

• Stated that we need to do what is best for the future of our children.

Laurie Til/iett 

• Stated that she realizes that the current Planning Board are not the people that

put the Cluster Home Ordinance in place but they can be the ones who fix it

• Stated that the community did not know this was happening when it happened

and can not believe someone would put cluster homes in Dare County.

• Stated that cluster homes are not right for our county, nor the future children.

DRAFT 











Minutes of the Dare County Planning Board 

April 4, 2023 meeting 

Page 7 of 16 

irrigation, and impervious paved surfaces that prevent precipitation from 

recharging the groundwater. 

• Stated that as the water is getting sucked out we can not replenish it at a rate

that is fast enough to sustain the population growth and density that is discussed

with all of the developments that are proposed.

• Explained that healthy environments are not just about access to nature but

ensuring that smart building is taking place that represents the people of the

community.

Lynn Davis 

• Began by quoting Noah, Planning Director, that he previously said that they were

going to police the Cluster Home Development the best that they could.

• He then asked the Planning Board who is going to police the Cluster Home

Development.

• Asked what is going to prevent these homes from ending up on VRBO like the

other houses that were titled workforce/affordable housing in Hatteras.

• Owns three properties on Brinkley Dr. and will not build homes for his son on

them because of surrounding properties that are not maintained.

• Stated that he hopes the Planning Board considers everything that is going on.

Amy Philips 

• Moved here in 2009 and had to move away once husband became ill.

• She moved back years later and sometimes questions her decision because of

the overbuilding and too much traffic.

• Understands that there are a lot of people who have owned property for many

years who now want to sell it and make a profit.

• Expressed how much she loves Wanchese and the way of life that they try to

hold on to.

• Stated that if she had the money and the energy she would fight it as hard as

possible because it is wrong for the Wanchese Community.

Mindy Ralph 

• Stated that she is in favor of removing the cluster home ordinance out of Dare 

County.

• Understands that development is inevitable, but wants it to be done the right way.

• Explained how she and her husband own a dumpster company that makes 

money off of people constructing homes nonstop, but they construct these 

homes in the right manner.

• Feels that no one wants to have 60 homes built beside them.

DRAFT 







Minutes of the Dare County Planning Board 

April 4, 2023 meeting 

Page 10 of 16 

development that has been proposed on Old Wharf Road. Any amendments adopted 

would only affect future developments. 

In 2018/2019 the Dare County Board of Commissioners adopted a series of 

amendments that would increase the number of year-round housing options in 

Unincorporated Dare County to help combat the housing crisis. As a result of these 

amendments the Cluster Home Ordinance was adopted and allowed for cluster home 

developments as special uses in 34 zoning districts. The Cluster Home Ordinance 

allows for the construction of more than one single family dwelling on an individual 

parcel. The regulations that were adopted were based on the existing group 

development standards but with reduced property setbacks, and reduced separation of 

dwellings. Since the adoption of the Cluster Home Ordinance, five cluster home 

developments have been approved in Unincorporated Dare County. 

Based on the public comments received staff has created a list of possible revisions to 

the Cluster Home Ordinance for the Planning Boards discussion. Other revisions can be 

added as part of the board's discussion. 

1. Increased setbacks and separation of dwellings

2. Increased Right-of-Way widths

3. Open space requirement that is free of improvements including wastewater

systems and stormwater infrastructure

4. Incremental density limitation dependent on parcel size

5. Removal from zoning districts

6. No changes

The findings of the Planning Board will be presented to the Board of Commissioners 

before proposed amendments are drafted, and the text amendment process begins. 

Chairman Finelli began the discussion by stating that he wanted to set aside Wanchese 

and any other possible districts that they feel this ordinance should be removed from. 

He explained that he wanted them to focus on just the ordinance as it would apply to 

any district it would be in. Chairman Finelli also expressed that the ordinance has had 

some positive impacts on workforce housing and prefers not to just throw it out 

completely. 

Mr. Gillam made a comment in reference to a statement made by Mr. Davis during the 

Board of Commissioners Meeting about rentals in southern Outer Banks that have been 

turned into VRBO's. Mr. Gillam expressed that those homes were not constructed as a 

DRAFT 






































